
          

 

 

COUNTY LINE 
DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

 

LEE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

OCTOBER 13, 2021 
10:00 A.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
27499 Riverview Center Boulevard, #253 

Bonita Springs, FL 33134 

www.countylinedd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 





���

������	
����	
����������� ����	
������������	�������
���������� !�"�#$!�$%"�!��#!��&!��$ �"$#����'����#"%� $#�""�!�%��("�� "#����	����
�����)
*�+�	�,�)��-��.������)
*�����
� �����	��	�����
���
/
*�0���
���
012�����*��,	
��3��	454��
*����
���
6��7�����	
�,	
�889����
*#�.��#�	,:$�.	:&����,	88;����
*�)����2���,	
��3��
�����8:����<	��	����:����$-����8:����<����8:�����*�5��
����	���-��
�
*�-�����	�,2��������,��
�,��	����,	���2�
*
*�-��.�������)&����,	�	2)���-���	�,��
���
�4�*�5��
����5	������
����,��-�������2�
*��
	,,�
���	���
���
�	
�5�:,	
�:	�,���	
����
	
�,��
*������,4��-����)
*�	���,	)��
*���5��
����5	�����
	���,)��5
*����
���
6�2����
���)��5
*����
���
�	�	���:�-���	����
���
���.����:���	
�,	
�9��$+����#�	,:�	�5+�	�*%	�,���:&����,	88=��4�*���5	������	�����2*�������5�����-��.�����2���-	�
���-	
���
���-*���4�����	�

�-��.�������)
*�$5����	��2�
*���	����
���$�
:	��-�������>�������-���	�	���55�,	
����
�-	�
���-	
���
*���5��
������	�?�,
�	,.���
*����
���
�7��	
��	�
)��
�����*
/=@1*������)���
*�5��
��������
	�
���
*����
���
�	�	���	
9A��A8��=;��	�,'��
���)���	
��@BB�B8B�=;��4!)���	��*�	�������-���*�5-	���,:-��	�����
	�

*�&����,	#��	����.���	
��@���;99�@BB�:2*��	�	�,��������
	�
���
*����
���
�7��4$-�����2*�,���,��
�	--�	�	��,�������5	,�	

*�5��
���2�
*���-��

�	��5	

�������,���,	
	-	�
����	�5��
�����	,.���,
*	
-�����2������,	�����,�)
*�-�����,����	�,
*	
	����,�����:
*�-�����5	����,
�������
*	
	.���	
�5�����,�)
*�-�����,������5	,������,���
*�
��
�5���	�,�.�,�����-��2*��*
*�	--�	���
����	��,4���
����5	����	������,)��5
�5�
�
�5�2�
*��
	,.��
���,��
���42224����
�����,,4���$�C=;�;�A8��
�����:����

Page 1



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

COUNTY LINE DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JULY 14, 2021 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The July 14, 2021, Regular Board Meeting of the County Line Drainage District (the “District”) was called to 
order at 10:10 a.m. at 23351 North River Road, Alva, Florida 33920. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in the Fort 
Myers News-Press on June 24, 2021, and July 1, 2021, as legally required.  
 
C. SEAT NEW BOARD MEMBERS 
 
Ms. Meneely seated the newly elected Board Member, Paul Fabry. 
 
D. ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE AND REVIEW BOARD MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES 
& DUTIES 
 
Ms. Meneely administered the Oath of Office to Paul Fabry. 
 
E. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was in order to 
proceed with the meeting: 
 
President Joe Beale Present 
Vice President Paul Fabry Present 
Assistant Secretary Pat McKenna Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely Special District Services, Inc. 
General Counsel Terry Lewis (via phone) Lewis, Longman & Walker 
District Engineer Kyle Grandusky GMAwater, LLC 
Field Consultant Randy Sebring  

 
Also present via telephone was Jeff Walker of Special District Services, Inc. 
 
F. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 

 Chairman 
  
A motion was made by Mr. Fabry, seconded by Mr. McKenna and passed unanimously electing Mr. Beale as 
the District’s Chairman. 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 Vice Chairman 
 
A motion was made by Mr. McKenna, seconded by Mr. Beale and passed unanimously electing Mr. Fabry as 
the District’s Vice Chairman. 
 

 Secretary/Treasurer 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Beale, seconded by Mr. Fabry and passed unanimously electing Ms. Meneely as 
the District’s Secretary/Treasurer. 
 

 Assistant Secretary 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Fabry, seconded by Mr. Beale and passed unanimously electing Mr. McKenna as 
the District’s Assistant Secretary. 

 
G. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
H. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  June 15, 2021, Special Board Meeting 
 
The June 15, 2021, Special Board Meeting minutes were presented for consideration. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. McKenna, seconded by Mr. Fabry and passed unanimously approving the June 
15, 2021, Special Board Meeting minutes, as presented. 
 
The Regular Board meeting was then recessed and the Public Hearing was opened. 
 
J. PUBLIC HEARING 
 1.  Proof of Publication 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Public Hearing had been published in the Fort Myers 
News-Press on June 24, 2021, and July 1, 2021, as legally required.  
 
 2.  Receive Public Comment on the Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Final Budget 
 
There was no public comment on the Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Final Budget. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2021-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Final Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2021-03 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-03 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY LINE DRAINAGE DISTRICT ADOPTING A 
FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 BUDGET.  

 
A motion was made by Mr. Fabry, seconded by Mr. McKenna and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
No. 2021-03, as presented. 
 
The Public Hearing was then closed and the Regular Board Meeting was reconvened. 
 
K. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Update Regarding 48-Foot Culvert in Section 14 South Side of Lake 
 
There was no update regarding this item at this time. 
 
 2.  Update Regarding Mowing, Washout Fill-In, Sodding and General Maintenance of North 
Dike 
 
Mr. McKenna noted that the washout areas were now in good shape and the mowing was looking good. 
 
L. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2021-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Meeting Schedule 
 
Resolution No. 2021-04 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-04 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY LINE 
DRAINAGE DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 AND SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF 
SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Beale, seconded by Mr. Fabry and passed unanimously adopting Resolution No. 
2021-04, as presented. 
 
M. MANAGER’S REPORT  
 1.  Financial Report 
 
Ms. Meneely went over financial report.  Mr. Fabry asked if the District was 70% into its fiscal budget and 
Mr. Walker advised that it was and that only 37% of the budgeted expenditures had been spent. 
 
Mr. Beale asked if the District will end up under budget and Mr. Fabry advised affirmatively.  However, Mr. 
Sebring reminded the Board that this was the time of the year (rainy season) that a lot of expenses tend to come 
up. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. McKenna, seconded by Mr. Fabry and passed unanimously accepting the financial 
report, as presented. 
 
N. FIELD REPORT 
 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Mr. Sebring went over his Field Report included in the meeting packet.  He stated that Mark Avanti would be 
calibrating meters beginning next week.  Mr. Fabry asked how much money had been spent on the North Dike 
and Mr. McKenna indicated he would check on that information and provide it accordingly. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Fabry, seconded by Mr. McKenna and passed unanimously accepting the Field 
Report, as presented. 
 
O. ENGINEER’S REPORT 
 1.  Accept and Approve Annual Engineer’s Report 
 
Mr. Grandusky went over the Annual Engineer’s Report included in the meeting packet, which also included 
the County Line Ditch Pump, the Babcock Water Storage Project and the Caloosahatchee River and Estuary 
Basin Management Action Plan.   
 
After discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Fabry, seconded by Mr. McKenna and passed unanimously 
accepting and approving the Annual Engineer’s Report, as presented. 
 
P. ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 1.  Legislative Update Regarding House Bill 53 – Stormwater Management Projections 
 
Mr. Lewis advised that new legislation had passed that impacts all water control districts.  He explained that 
an analysis of stormwater equipment, structures, conveyance systems and other property used in connection 
with providing a stormwater management system is required by June 20, 2022.  He added that the information 
would be covered by Mr. Grandusky and will go to the County with updates every five years. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Fabry, seconded by Mr. McKenna and passed unanimously accepting the 
Attorney’s Report, as presented. 
 
Q. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
Ms. Meneely noted that the next Board Meeting was scheduled for October 13, 2021. 
  
R. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board Members. 
 
S. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Beale, seconded by Mr. 
Fabry and passed unanimously to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 10:40 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   President/Vice President 
 
 

Page 5



 

01541385‐1    

RESOLUTION 2021‐05 

WHEREAS,  the  Board  of  Supervisors  of  the  County  Line  Drainage  District,  a  political 
subdivision and special purpose  local government of the state of Florida has determined that 
establishing organizational order for the annual election of a member of the Board is necessary 
to eliminate any confusion regarding whose term of office has expired; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has determined that assigning seat numbers for each 
Board seat will assist in eliminating any confusion as to which Board member term of office has 
expired. 

NOW  THEREFORE,  THE  BOARD  OF  SUPERVISORS  OF  THE  COUNTY  LINE  DRAINAGE 
DISTRICT HEREBY ORDERS: 

1. The  Board  of  Supervisors  seat  which  term  expires  in  July,  2022  is  hereby 
designated Seat Number 1. 

2. The  Board  of  Supervisors  seat  which  term  expires  in  July,  2023  is  hereby 
designated Seat Number 2. 

3. The  Board  of  Supervisors  seat  which  term  expires  in  July,  2024  is  hereby 
designated Seat Number 3. 

DONE AND ORDERED THIS 13th DAY OF October, 2021. 

APPROVE AS TO FORM 

Terry E. Lewis  COUNTY LINE DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

_________________________________  By: _____________________________ 
Terry E. Lewis, General Counsel   Joe Beale, President 

Dated:_September 22, 2021 ______________  Dated:___________________________ 

Page 6



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
COUNTY LINE DRAINAGE DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND 
ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021 
BUDGET, PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 197, FLORIDA STATUTES; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the County Line Drainage District (hereinafter 
the “District”) is empowered to provide a funding source and to impose special assessments upon 
the properties within the District; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has prepared for consideration and approval an amended final 
fiscal year 2020/2021 budget. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE COUNTY LINE DRAINAGE DISTRICT, THAT: 
  

                  Section 1. The Amended Operating Fund and Debt Service Fund Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2020/2021 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby approved and adopted. 

 
 Section 2. The Secretary/Assistant Secretary of the District is authorized to execute 

any and all necessary transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as 
necessary, to comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 13th day of October, 2021. 
 

 

ATTEST: COUNTY LINE  
 DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 
 

Page 7



County Line 
Drainage District

Amended Final Budget For
Fiscal Year 2020/2021

October 1, 2020 - September 30, 2021

Page 8



Page 9



County Line
Drainage District

 Financial Report For
September 2021

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



COUNTY LINE DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
FIELD REPORT 

FOR THE MONTHS OF OCTOBER THROUGH DECEMBER 2021 
 

 
 

1) CULVERTS REMOVED/INSTALLED 
 

a) No repairs needed. 
 

2) CANALS CLEANED 
 
       a)   None. 
 
 

3) WEED CONTROL 
 

a) None. 
 

4) ROADS MAINTENANCE 
 

a) None. 
 

5) METERS/PUMPS 
 

a) Read all meters. 
b) Mark with Avanti Company has 2 pumps to calibrate. 

 
6) PROJECTED OR SPECIAL PROJECT  

 
a) Filled hog washouts on north dike.   
b) Need to remove culvert between Section 12 & Section 1. 

      
 
 
 
 

Page 13


	County Line Drainage District - October 13, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	July 14, 2021 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2021-05 – Assigning Board Seat Numbers
	Consider Resolution No. 2021-06 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Amended Budget
	Financial Report
	Field Report




